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CORPORATE PROFILE

Camsing Healthcare Limited (“Camsing Healthcare” or the “Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, 
the “Group”) was incorporated in Singapore on 19 December 1979, and is listed on the Mainboard of the 
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (stock code: BAC). The current principal activities of the 
Group are the distribution and retailing of health supplements and foods in Singapore.
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Nature’s Farm Pte Ltd

Since its incorporation in 1982, Nature’s Farm has 
established itself as a trusted and recognised name 
in quality imported health supplements, honey and 
health foods. Nature’s Farm today operates 12 retail 
stores across major shopping malls in Singapore and 
is also accessible to consumers 24/7 via its e-store 
and presence in major e-commerce platforms such as 
Shopee, Qoo10 and Lazada.

In keeping with the Brand’s commitment of curating 
the best quality health supplements from international 
leading health supplements and health foods 
manufacturers, Nature’s Farm continues to maintain a 
strong focus in the area of new products development, 
working with only GMP certified manufacturers, 
such as Wakunaga Kyolic®, Dr. Ohhira’s®, Twinlab®, 
Norwegian Fish Oil®, NOW®, Bluebonnet® in ensuring 
only supplements and health foods manufactured to the 
highest quality are presented in our retail platforms.
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Ms Liu Hui
(Executive Director)

Ms. Liu Hui was appointed as a Director on 19 
November 2015. She is an accountant by training. She 
has years of experience in financial auditing and asset 
management. Ms. Liu Hui is currently Deputy General 
Manager at Beijing Zhiheng Internet Technology Private 
Limited Company. Ms. Liu holds an EMBA degree from 
HEC Business School.

Mr Yeo Choon Tat
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Yeo Choon Tat was appointed as Independent 
Non-Executive Director of the Group on 22, June 
2021. He is also the Chairman of Audit and Nominating 
Committees.

Mr. Yeo is a finance professional with more than 35 
years of regional experience in senior management roles 
for multinational corporations and local organisations 
across diverse industries, such as electronics 
manufacturing, venture capital investment, portfolio 
management, and managing turnaround operations in 
Hong Kong, China and Singapore. 

His past principal appointments includes, inter alia, 
Vice President (Finance and Asia-Pacific Operations) at 
Creative Technology Ltd.; Senior Vice President (Head 
of Greater China Investment) at Vertex Management 
Pte. Ltd.; Chief Operating Officer at Jolimark Holdings 
Ltd., Hong Kong; Executive Director of ASA Holdings 
Ltd., Singapore; and Group Financial Controller of 
Intraco Limited. 

Mr. Yeo is an accountancy graduate (B. Acc) of the 
University of Singapore. He is also a fellow member of 
the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants (FCA), 
CPA Australia (FCPA Australia) and ACCA U.K. (FCCA).

Tan Keng Keat
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Mr Tan joined the Board on 25 July 2022 as 
Independent Director and is the Chairman of the 
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit 
and Nominating Committee.  Mr Tan is currently an 
Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of 
Imperium Crown Limited, a company listed on the 
Catalist of The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading 
Limited.  An experienced accountant with over 20 years 
of experience in the financial sector, Mr Tan started 
his professional career with PricewaterhouseCoopers 
Singapore and later moved on to public listed 
companies. He has held key positions such as Director, 
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary in 
companies listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities 
Trading Limited, the London Stock Exchange and the 
Australian Securities Exchange and is experienced in 
financial reporting, corporate finance, treasury, audit, 
taxation and company secretarial matters. Mr Tan 
graduated from the Nanyang Technological University 
with a degree in Accountancy (Honours) and is a 
Chartered Accountant with the Institute of Singapore 
Chartered Accountants.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased 
to present the Annual Report and Audited Financial 
Statements for the financial year ended 31 January 
2022 (“FY2022”).

Through our relentless efforts and determination over 
the last couple of months to regularise past breaches 
since the trigger of the special audit in or around April 
2019 and to improve on the quality of our financial 
reporting, we have managed to resolve almost all major 
legacy issues save for one which thereby give rise to 
an audit qualification which, in any case, has already 
been highlighted in the audit reports for the past three 
financial years. It is regrettable that the auditors have 
not come to terms with the Company on the said issue 
although the incumbent board and management have 
taken a considered position of the matter (see Note 9 
to the Audited Financial Statements for more details). 
Given the nature of the legacy issue, it is envisaged that 
it would only be fully addressed and resolved with the 
effluxion of time. As such, the auditors have maintained 
an “except for” opinion in respect of this sole legacy 
issue on the FY2022 Audited Financial Statements. 

Financial Review

Revenue for the year amounted to S$5,530,000, a 
S$160,000 or 3% difference from the S$5,690,000 
reported for FY2021. The lower result was primarily 
attributable to the year-end adjustment for the 
unredeemed customers’ loyalty points as at 31 January 
2022.

Meanwhile, marketing and distribution costs increased 
marginally by S$31,000 or 1% from S$3,764,000 to 
S$3,795,000 in FY2022. The increase was mainly due 
to increase in marketing and advertisement expenses, 
employee benefits expenses, offset by decrease in 
depreciation for right-of-use assets.

Administrative and other operating expenses decreased 
by S$449,000 or 33% from S$1,370,000 in FY2021 
to S$921,000, primarily due to the Group having 
recognised a property, plant and equipment write-off of 
S$202,000 and prepaid expenses write-off of S$94,000 
in FY2021, compared to property, plant and equipment 
write-off of S$36,000 and no prepaid expenses having 
been written off in FY2022.

The finance costs decreased by 12% from S$237,000 
in FY2021 to S$209,000 in FY2022, mainly due to 
decrease in interest on lease liabilities.

The Group recorded a higher loss before tax for 
S$1,349,000 in FY2022 compared to S$829,000 in 
FY2021. This was mainly attributable to the lower 
gross margin generated from retail business and less 
government grant income during FY2022.

The decrease in the carrying amount of property, plant 
and equipment was due mainly to the depreciation and 
impairment loss on property, plant and equipment in  
FY2022.

The increase in ROU assets was due to the renewal of 
lease agreement, and the decrease in lease liabilities 
was due mainly to repayment during the year.

The decrease in other receivables by S$507,000 was 
due mainly to the refund of rental deposits as a few 
outlets were closed in FY2022.

Inventories decreased mainly due to lesser purchases 
for FY2022 and in line with lower sales demand.

Please refer to the consolidated cash flow statement for 
detail of changes in cash and cash equivalents.
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Risk management

As mentioned previously, the Board and Management 
noted the findings of the special auditor on certain 
lapses in internal controls and has since taken actions 
to rectify them. In addition, the Company has engaged 
the services of an external independent reviewer 
(“Independent Reviewer”) to look into these matters. To 
this end, I am pleased to update that the Independent 
Reviewer has completed its independent review and 
provided its findings in a report issued to the Company, 
pursuant to the Notice of Compliance from SGX RegCo 
dated 1 September 2020 following the completion 
of the special audit. Please refer to the Company’s 
announcement via SGXNET on 8 August 2022 for more 
details. 

Please also refer to the accompanying Report on 
Corporate Governance, Audited Financial Statements 
and Risk Assessment and Management section for 
FY2021 for relevant information on the Group’s risk 
management policies and practices.

Outlook

While business activities in general are gradually 
showing signs of improvement in recent months with 
the easing of pandemic containment measures, the 
effects and impacts of Covid-19 on the Singapore 
economy (especially the severely affected retail sector) 
remained slow in recovery.

The Group will continue its efforts to create more online 
presence on purchasing platforms to garner more 
sales and identify new markets. It will look at ways to 
optimize its business operations and create better 
shareholders’ value.

As announced via SGXNET on 27 December 2021, the 
Company had entered into an investment agreement 
and a loan agreement (“First Loan Agreement”), both 

dated 25 December 2021, with an independent party 
(the “Investor”) wherein the Investor will be extending 
fresh funds to the Company subject to the satisfaction 
of certain conditions as set out therein. In view of some 
imminent business opportunities (including expanding 
the range of products and business coverage) and its 
operational needs, on 3 March 2021, the Company 
entered into, among others, a second loan agreement 
(“Second Loan Agreement”) with the Investor. Pursuant 
to and subject to the terms and conditions of the 
Second Loan Agreement, the Investor shall loan to the 
Company up to an aggregate principal amount of $2.99 
million for purchase of healthcare supplements and 
other operational or working capital purposes. Please 
refer to the aforementioned announcements for more 
details. 

As global supply chains continue to be disrupted and 
inflation rising, the Group anticipates slower economic 
growth in the coming quarters which may adversely 
impact consumer sentiment. Nonetheless, the Group 
will continue its cores strategies of developing products, 
expanding sales channels and applying prudent cost 
management measures.

Acknowledgement

It has been a challenging and unprecedented time and 
we have been able to forge ahead due to the hard work 
and support from our staff, business partners, vendors, 
financiers, service providers, and other stakeholders. 
On the behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to 
thank them for their contributions, and understanding, 
and also for the patience and faith of our shareholders. 
We look forward to charting the next phase of growth 
with our stakeholders.
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Year Ended 31 January
2022
$’000

2021
$’000

2020
$’000

2019
$’000

2018
$’000

Income Statement

Revenue 5,530 5,690 7,308 8,386 14,912

Profit/(Loss) before tax (1,349) (829) (5,458) (6,571) 122

Income tax (expense)/credit 20 -   - - (115)

Profit/(Loss) for the year (1,329) (829) (5,458) (6,571) 7

Profit/(Loss) attributable to owners of the parent (1,328) (828) (5,458) (6,570) 53

Balance Sheet

Property, plant and equipment 106 230 650 1,406 2,465

Right-of-use assets 1,616 1,210 2,167 - -

Other receivables - non-current 244 256 673 892 442

Net current assets  -   - - 2,240 8,279

Long term investments  -   - - - -

Deferred tax assets  -   - 74 74 117

Total assets employed 1,966 1,696 3,564 4,612 11,303

Shareholders’ funds (3,331) (2,018) (1,189) 4,202 11,093

Non-controlling interest (3) (2) (1) (1) (46)

Net current liabilities 3,531 2,821  2,809 - -

Other non-current liabilities 1,769 875 1,838 237 25

Deferred tax liabilities  -   20 107 174 231

Total funds invested 1,966 1,696 3,564 4,612 11,303

Per Ordinary Share

Profit/(Loss) after tax attributable
to owners of the parent (cents)

(4.43) (2.76) (18.19) (21.90)   0.18

Net tangible assets (cents) (11.11) (6.73) (3.97) 14.01 36.98

Financial Ratios

Net debt-equity ratio NM NM  NM 0.68 NM

Interest cover (times) NM NM NM   NM 3.18

NM: not meaningful

Five-Year Group Financial Statistics
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Camsing Healthcare Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) recognise 
the importance of and are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance in 
conformity with the revised Code of Corporate Governance 2018 (the “Code”). Unless otherwise 
disclosed below, the Company is in compliance with the requirements of the Code during the financial 
year ended 31 January 2022 (“FY2022”).  
 
1. BOARD MATTERS 

 
1.1 The Board’s Conduct of Affairs 
 

Principle 1: The company is headed by an effective Board which is collectively responsible 
and works with Management for the long-term success of the company. 
 
Provision 1.1 
 
The Board of Directors (the “Board”) recognises its duties and responsibilities to shareholders of 
the Company (the “Shareholders”) which principally include the following:  
 
(a) reviewing and adopting a strategic plan for the Company and the Group;  

 
(b) overseeing the overall conduct of the Company’s business and that of the Group;  

 
(c) identifying principal risks and ensuring that an appropriate system of internal control exists to 

manage these risks;  
 

(d) reviewing the adequacy and integrity of internal controls systems and management 
information systems in the Company and within the Group;  
 

(e) developing and implementing a sound communications policy for investor relations; and 
 

(f) succession planning, including appointing and determining compensation of senior 
management.  

 
All Directors, being fiduciaries, are required to act objectively in the best interests of the Company. 
The Board has a general understanding and expectation of a code of conduct and ethics and 
desired organisational culture so as to ensure proper accountability of the Company. The Board 
will revisit and formalise such understanding and expectations in due course.  
 
The Board exercises due diligence and independent judgement in dealing with the business affairs 
of the Group and is obliged to act in good faith and to take objective decisions in the interest of the 
Group. When a potential conflict of interest situation arises, the affected Director will recuse himself 
or herself from the discussion and decisions involving the areas of potential conflict, unless the 
Board is of the opinion that his participation is necessary. Where such participation is permitted, 
the conflicted Director shall excuse himself or herself for an appropriate period during the 
discussions to facilitate full and frank exchange by the other Directors, and shall in any event 
recuse himself or herself from the decision-making. 

 
Provision 1.2 
 
All the Directors have a good understanding of the Group’s business as well as their directorship 
duties (including their roles as executive Directors of the Company (“Executive Directors”), non-
executive Directors of the Company (“Non-Executive Directors”) and independent Directors of 
the Company (“Independent Directors”), as the case may be). Directors are expected to develop 
their competencies to effectively discharge their duties are provided with opportunities to develop 
and maintain their skills and knowledge at the Company’s expense. 
 
The Board is kept updated on pertinent business developments in the business, including the key 
changes in the regulatory requirements and financial reporting standards, risk management, 
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corporate governance and industry specific knowledge, so as to enable them to properly discharge 
their duties as members of the Board and Board Committees. Directors may request further 
explanations, briefings and informal discussions on any aspects of the Group’s operations or 
business issues. 
 
On an ongoing basis, news releases issued by the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited 
(“SGX-ST”) and the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (“ACRA”) which are relevant 
to the Group’s business are circulated to the Board. 
 
Newly appointed Directors are given briefings on the Group to ensure that they are familiar with 
the Group’s key business and governance practices. Prior to their appointment, new Directors are 
provided with the relevant information on their duties as Directors, the Company’s governance 
processes as well as relevant statutory and regulatory compliance matters. Familiarisation visits 
have been organised, if necessary, to facilitate a better understanding of the Group’s operations.  

 
The Company is responsible for arranging and funding the training of Directors. Board members 
are encouraged to attend seminars and receive training to improve themselves in the discharge of 
their duties as Directors. The Company will work closely with professionals to provide Board 
members with updates on changes to relevant laws, regulations and accounting standards. 
 
All Directors will be given continuous and ongoing training programmes by attending courses, 
seminars and talks. The Directors attend courses, briefings and seminars, relating to risk 
management, corporate governance, investors relations and reporting requirements in relation to 
financial statements.  

 
The Directors did not attend any structured training programs during FY2022. Nevertheless, the 
Directors were from time to time kept abreast of any major changes and development in financial 
reporting, risk management and other regulatory requirements by the Company’s auditors (both 
internal and external) and Company Secretary. 

 
Provision 1.3 

 
The Board has adopted internal guidelines specifying matters reserved for approval by the Board. 
The management of the Company (“Management”) is given clear directions on matters (including 
setting thresholds for certain operational matters relating to the Company’s subsidiaries) that 
require the Board’s approval. Certain material matters that require the Board’s approval are as 
follows:  
 
(a) setting of strategic direction or policies or financial objectives which have or may have a 

material impact on the profitability or performance of the Group; 
 
(b) decisions to commence, discontinue or modify significantly any business activity or to enter 

or withdraw from a particular market sector, corporate or financial restructuring; 
 
(c) decisions over new borrowings exceeding S$2.5 million or significant amendments to the 

terms and conditions of existing borrowings other than in the ordinary course of business; 
 
(d) material acquisitions and disposal of assets; 
 
(e) all corporate actions for which shareholder approval is required; and 
 
(f) any other matters which require the Board’s approval as prescribed under the relevant 

legislation and regulations as well as the Company’s Constitution. 
 

Provision 1.4 
 
To further assist in the execution of its responsibilities and to enhance the Company’s corporate 
governance framework, the Board has established three (3) board committees, namely the Audit 
Committee (the “AC”), the Nominating Committee (the “NC”) and the Remuneration Committee 
(the “RC”) (collectively, the “Board Committees”). These Board Committees operate within clearly 
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defined terms of reference and operating procedures which are reviewed on a regular basis. The 
AC is responsible for undertaking an independent review of the effectiveness of the financial 
reporting process and internal control systems of the Company and if required, to make the 
necessary recommendations to strengthen the necessary processes and controls to the Board. 
The NC is responsible for reviewing and making the appropriate recommendations to the Board 
on all board appointments and re-appointments while the RC is responsible for establishing and 
implementing a framework for remuneration of directors and key management personnel. 
 
The effectiveness of each Board Committee is also constantly monitored. Minutes of all Board 
Committee meetings are circulated to the Board so that the Directors are aware of and kept 
updated to the proceedings and matters discussed during such meetings.  
 
The Board has delegated the day-to-day operations to Management while reserving key matters 
for Board approval. Management in conducting day-to-day operations of the Group will be guided 
by internal guidelines (such as the approval limits for various expenditures, banking and treasury 
approval limits and authorised signatories) that clearly set out the matters which must be approved 
by the Board. In addition, the Board is free to request for further clarification and information from 
Management on all matters within their purview. Notwithstanding the above delegation of authority 
by the Board, the ultimate responsibility on all matters lies with the Board. 
 
Provision 1.5 
 
The Board meets on a regular basis as and when necessary to discharge their duties. The 
Company’s Constitution allows for tele-conference and video-conference meetings to facilitate 
participation by Board members and Management. 
 
The number of meetings held by the Board and Board Committees and the attendance of each 
Director during FY2022 are summarised in the table below:  
 

Name of Director 
Board 

No. of meetings 
AC 

No. of meetings 
RC 

No. of meetings 
NC 

No. of meetings 
 Held# Attended Held# Attended Held# Attended Held# Attended 

Lo Ching(1) 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 
Liu Hui 3 2 3 0 0 - 2 0 

Patel Anand 
Rameshchandra(2) 

0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 

Tay Chiew 
Sheng(3) 

0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 

Lim Heng Huat(3) 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 
Tan Chade 

Phang(4) 
1 1 1 1 0 - 2 2 

Koh Boon Chiao(5) 1 1 1 1 0 - 2 2 
Yeo Choon Tat(6) 2 2 3 3 0 - 2 2 

- 

Notes: 
 

# The number of meetings indicated “Held” above reflects the number of meetings held during the time the respective Directors 
held office. 

^ Attendance by invitation. 
(1) Ms. Lo Ching resigned as Executive Director of the Company on 23 March 2021. 
(2) Mr. Patel Anand Rameshchandra was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company on 21 March 2019 and resigned as 

Independent Director of the Company on 22 March 2021. 
(3) Mr. Tay Chiew Sheng and Mr. Lim Heng Huat were appointed as Independent Directors of the Company on 21 March 2019 and 

resigned as Independent Directors of the Company on 19 March 2021. 
(4) Mr. Tan Chade Phang was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company on 23 March 2021 and resigned as Independent 

Director of the Company on 15 September 2021. 
(5) Mr. Koh Boon Chiao was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company on 29 March 2021 and resigned as Independent 

Director of the Company on 15 September 2021. 
(6) Mr. Yeo Choon Tat was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company on 22 June 2021. 
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The number of meetings held by the Board and Board Committees and the attendance of each 
Director from the period starting 1 February 2022 to the date of this Report are summarised in the 
table below:

Name of Director
Board

No. of meetings
AC

No. of meetings
RC

No. of meetings
NC

No. of meetings
Held# Attended Held# Attended Held# Attended Held# Attended

Liu Hui 1 1 2 1^ 1 0 1 0
Yeo Choon Tat 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 1
Tan Keng Keat 

(Chen Qingjie)(1)
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Notes:

# The number of meetings indicated “Held” above reflects the number of meetings held during the time the respective Directors 
held office.

^ Attendance by invitation.
(1) Mr. Tan Keng Keat (Chen Qingjie) was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company on 25 July 2022.

All Directors are required to declare their board representations on an annual basis and as soon 
as practicable after the relevant facts have come to his or her knowledge.

The NC reviews the contribution by each Director taking into account their listed company board 
representations and other principal commitments. The Board has set the maximum number of five 
(5) listed company board representations (or such other number as approved by the NC from time 
to time) which any Director of the Company may hold at any one time. All Directors have complied 
with this requirement.

Provision 1.6

The Company recognises the importance of continual dissemination of relevant information which 
is explicit, accurate, timely and vital to the Board in carrying out its duties. The Management reports 
to the Board the Company’s progress and drawbacks in meeting its strategic business objectives 
or financial targets and other information relevant to the strategic issues encountered by the 
Company in a timely and accurate manner to enable the Directors to be cognizant of the decisions 
and actions of the executive management. Types of information provided by Management to the 
Independent and Non-Executive Directors include management accounts, internal income 
statement forecasts, external auditors’ reports, internal audit reports and periodic updates on the 
Group’s operations. The Company endeavours to provide the Board with the management 
accounts of the Group’s performance and position on a quarterly basis.

The Executive Director also updates the Board at each Board meeting on business and strategic 
developments, and the Management highlights salient issues as well as risk management 
considerations for the industry which the Group is in. 

Changes to regulations are also closely monitored by Management and the Directors are briefed 
during the Board meetings on changes which have an important bearing on the Company or the 
Directors’ disclosure obligations.

Provision 1.7

The Directors have unrestricted access to records and information of the Group, and have separate 
and independent access to the Company Secretary, the Company’s external auditors and senior 
management of the Group at all times in carrying out their functions. The Company Secretary 
attends or is represented at all meetings of the Board and Board Committees, ensures a good flow 
of information within the Board and between the Management and Non-Executive Directors, 
attends to corporate secretarial administration matters, and ensures that Board procedures are 
followed and that applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The appointment and removal 
of the Company Secretary is subject to the approval of the Board.
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Should the Directors, whether as a group or individually, require independent professional advice 
in furtherance of their duties and responsibilities as Directors, such professionals will be appointed 
at the Company’s expense.  
 

1.2 Board Composition and Guidance 
 
Principle 2: The Board has an appropriate level of independence and diversity of thought 
and background in its composition to enable it to make decisions in the best interests of 
the company. 
 
Provision 2.1 
 
The criterion for independence is based on the criteria set out in the Code. The Code defines an 
Independent Director as one who is independent in conduct, character and judgement, and has no 
relationship with the Company, its related corporations, its substantial shareholders or its officers 
that could interfere, or be reasonably perceived to interfere, with the exercise of the Director’s 
independent business judgement in the best interests of the Company. The independence of each 
Director is reviewed annually by the NC in accordance with the criteria of independence in the 
Code. 
 
The Company currently has no Independent Director who has served on the Board beyond nine 
(9) years. 
 
Provisions 2.2 and 2.3 
 
Where the Chairman is not an Independent Director, the Independent Directors shall make up a 
majority of the Board. As of the date of this Report, Independent Non-Executive Directors make up 
a majority of the Board. Currently, Mr. Yeo Choon Tat and Mr. Tan Keng Keat (Chen Qingjie) act 
as Independent Directors while Ms. Liu Hui is the Executive Director.  
 
The Board does not currently have a Chairman, and this is pending the appointment of another 
independent director. In the interim, Mr. Yeo Choon Tat typically chairs meetings of the Board and 
takes on the functions of Chairman of the Board. In any event, the Company is actively sourcing 
for suitable candidates to be appointed as Non-Executive and/or Independent Directors to comply 
with the requirements of the Code in relation to the composition of the Board and Board 
Committees.  
 
Pursuant to a Notice of Compliance dated 17 December 2019 issued by the Singapore Exchange 
Regulation (“SGX RegCo”) (the “17 Dec NOC”), the Company is required by SGX RegCo to obtain 
the prior approval of the SGX-ST for the appointment of a Director or an executive officer for a 
period not exceeding three (3) years from 17 December 2019.   
 
Pursuant to another Notice of Compliance dated 23 September 2021 issued by SGX RegCo (the 
“23 Sep NOC”), SGX RegCo highlighted that the Company is required to appoint two independent 
directors by 15 December 2021 as a consequence of the resignation of two former independent 
directors on 15 September 2021.  
 
The Company has been in active communications with SGX RegCo to nominate proposed 
candidates to be appointed as independent directors, and Mr. Tan Keng Keat (Chen Qingjie) was 
accordingly appointed on 25 July 2022. The Company is in the process of identifying and 
nominating another candidate to be appointed as an independent director. 
 
Provision 2.4 
 
As at the end of FY2022, the Board comprises two (2) Directors, of whom one (1) is an Independent 
Director. The composition of the Board as at the end of FY2022 is set out below: 
 
Executive Directors   
Liu Hui - Executive Director 
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Non-Executive Directors 
Yeo Choon Tat - Independent Non-Executive Director 

 
At the date of this Report, the Board comprises three (3) Directors, of whom two (2) are 
Independent Directors. The composition of the Board as at the date of this Report is set out below: 
 
Executive Director   
Liu Hui - Executive Director 
   
Non-Executive Directors   
Yeo Choon Tat - Independent Non-Executive Director 
Tan Keng Keat (Chen Qingjie) - Independent Non-Executive Director 

 
The Board constantly reviews its size and is of the view that the current Board size is appropriate 
to facilitate effective decision-making and will bring independent judgment, taking into account the 
scope and nature of the operations of the Company and the Group. 

 
The composition of the Board is reviewed on an annual basis by the NC to ensure that the Board 
has the appropriate mix of expertise and experience, and collectively possesses the necessary 
core competencies for effective functioning and informed decision-making. The Directors, with their 
different backgrounds and specialisation, collectively bring with them a wide range of experience 
and expertise in the aspect of economics, accounting and general business management. The 
current composition of the Board also provides a diversity of genders, with one female Director, 
namely Ms. Liu Hui, in addition to Mr. Yeo Choon Tat and Mr. Tan Keng Keat (Chen Qingjie).  
 
Provision 2.5 
 
The Independent Director provides oversight on Management performance by constructively 
challenging and helping to develop proposals on strategy. He monitors and reviews the reporting 
and performance of Management in meeting agreed goals and objectives. Where appropriate, the 
Independent Director provides feedback to the Board. 

 
1.3 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 

 
Principle 3: There is a clear division of responsibilities between the leadership of the Board 
and Management, and no one individual has unfettered powers of decision-making.  
 
Provision 3.1 
 
As disclosed above, the Board does not have a Chairman currently. In the interim, Mr. Yeo Choon 
Tat typically chairs meetings of the Board and takes on the functions of Chairman of the Board.  
 
Mr. Yeo Choon Tat, being an Independent Director who takes on the function of the Chairman of 
the Board, and the Executive Director are separate persons and are not related to each other. As 
such, there is a clear division of responsibilities between the leadership of the Board and the 
executives responsible for managing the Group’s business. 
 
Provision 3.2 
 
Taking on the function of the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Yeo Choon Tat bears primary 
responsibility for the workings of the Board, by ensuring effectiveness on all aspects of its role 
including setting agenda for Board meetings with input from Management, ensuring that sufficient 
time is allocated for discussion of agenda items at Board meetings, promoting an open 
environment at Board meetings for constructive debate, encouraging all Directors to speak freely, 
and exercising control over the quality, quantity and timeliness of information flow between the 
Board and Management. At annual general meetings (each, an “AGM”) and other Shareholders’ 
meetings, he plays a pivotal role in fostering constructive dialogue between Shareholders, the 
Board and Management. The Board will formally appoint a Chairman of the Board after one 
additional Independent Directors has been appointed. 
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The Company does not currently have a Chief Executive Officer. The Executive Director, Ms. Liu 
Hui, is responsible for developing and directing organizational strategy as well as overseeing day-
to-day business and corporate activities. All major decisions made by the Executive Director are 
to be endorsed by the Board. Her performance is reviewed periodically by the NC and 
remuneration package is also reviewed periodically by the RC. 
 
Provision 3.3 
 
The Board does not currently have a lead independent director. Mr. Yeo Choon Tat, who was 
appointed on 22 June 2021, is presently the Chairman of the AC and the NC. Mr. Tan Keng Keat 
(Chen Qingjie), who was appointed on 25 July 2022, is presently the Chairman of the RC. The 
Independent Directors are available to Shareholders where they have concerns and for which 
contact through the normal channels of the Executive Director or Management has failed to resolve 
or is inappropriate. 
 

1.4 Board Membership 
 
Principle 4: The Board has a formal and transparent process for the appointment and re-
appointment of directors, taking into account the need for progressive renewal of the Board. 
 
Provisions 4.1 and 4.2 
 
The NC currently comprises Mr. Yeo Choon Tat (Chairman) and Mr. Tan Keng Keat (Chen Qingjie), 
who are each an Independent Non-Executive Director. The Company is taking active steps to 
source for suitable candidates to be appointed as Non-Executive and/or Independent Directors, so 
that the NC will comprise at least three Directors, the majority of whom, including the NC Chairman, 
are independent. As disclosed above, the Company has recently appointed Mr. Tan Keng Keat 
(Chen Qingjie) as an Independent Director on 25 July 2022 and is in the process of identifying and 
nominating another candidate to be appointed as an independent director. 
 
The NC functions under a set of written terms of reference which sets out its responsibilities as 
follows: 
 
(a) to make recommendations to the Board on all Board appointments and re-nominations, 

having regard to the Director’s contribution and performance (for example, attendance, 
preparedness, participation and candour) including as an Independent Director; 
 

(b) to determine on an annual basis whether or not a Director is independent; 
 

(c) to decide whether a Director is able to and has been adequately carrying out his duties as a 
Director of the Company, particularly when the Director has multiple board representations; 

 
(d) to ensure that all Directors submit themselves for re-nomination and re-election at regular 

intervals; 
 

(e) to assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and its Board Committees, and the 
contribution by each individual Director to the effectiveness of the Board; 

 
(f) to review the board succession plans for Directors; and  

 
(g) to review the training and professional development programmes for the Board. 
 
Provision 4.3 
 
There is a formal and transparent process for the appointment of new Directors to the Board. If the 
appointment of new Directors is required, the NC will identify potential candidates from various 
sources. If need be, the NC may seek assistance from external search consultants for the selection 
of potential candidates. Directors and Management may also put forward names of potential 
candidates, together with their curriculum vitae, for consideration. The NC reviews and 
recommends all new Board appointments and also the re-nomination and re-appointment of 
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Directors to the Board. The NC ensures that Directors appointed to the Board possess the 
background, experience and knowledge in technology, business, legal, finance and management 
skills critical to the Company’s business and that each Director contributes and brings to the Board 
an independent and objective perspective to enable balanced and well-considered decisions to be 
made. In the nomination and selection process of a new director, the NC will also take into 
consideration the current Board size and its composition, including the mix of expertise, skills and 
attributes of the Directors, and determine if the candidate’s background, experience and 
knowledge will bolster the core competencies of the Board. 
 
The Directors submit themselves for re-nomination and re-election at regular intervals of at least 
once every three years. Article 90 of the Company’s Constitution provides that one-third of the 
Board, or the number nearest to one-third, shall retire by rotation at every AGM. Article 91 of the 
Company’s Constitution provides that the Directors to retire shall be the Directors who have been 
longest in office since their last election.  
 
In addition, Article 96 of the Company’s Constitution provides that new Directors appointed during 
the year either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional Director shall retire but shall be eligible 
for re-election at the following general meeting of the Company. 
 
Accordingly, Ms. Liu Hui is retiring at the forthcoming AGM in accordance with Articles 90 and 91 
of the Company’s Constitution, and Mr. Tan Keng Keat (Chen Qingjie) is retiring at the forthcoming 
AGM in accordance with Article 96. 
 
Being eligible, Ms. Liu Hui and Mr. Tan Keng Keat (Chen Qingjie) have offered themselves for re-
election. The NC, has recommended the re-election of Ms. Liu Hui and Mr Tan Keng Keat (Chen 
Qingjie) to the Board. For the avoidance of doubt, Mr. Tan Keng Keat (Chen Qingjie) has abstained 
from the NC’s recommendation pertaining to his re-election. In making the recommendation, the 
NC has considered the overall contribution and performance of Ms. Liu Hui and Mr. Tan Keng Keat 
(Chen Qingjie).  
 
Provision 4.4 
 
The NC is also responsible for determining the independence of Directors annually. In doing so, 
the NC takes into account the criteria set forth in the Code and any other salient factors. 
 
Mr. Yeo Choon Tat and Mr. Tan Keng Keat (Chen Qingjie) have confirmed their independence in 
accordance with the criteria of independence in the Code and the NC, following its review, is of the 
view that they are independent in accordance with the definition of independence in the Code. For 
the avoidance of doubt, each of Mr. Yeo Choon Tat and Mr. Tan Keng Keat (Chen Qingjie) have 
abstained from reviewing his own independence. 
 
Provision 4.5 
 
Based on the attendance of the Directors and their contributions at meetings of the Board and 
Board Committees and their time commitment to the affairs of the Company, the NC believes that 
the Directors continue to meet the demands of the Group and are able to discharge their duties 
adequately. 
 
Key information regarding the Directors in office at the date of this Report, including their listed 
company board representations and other principal commitments, is set out below: 
 
Name of Director 
 

Liu Hui 
 

Yeo Choon Tat 
 

Tan Keng Keat (Chen 
Qingjie) 
 

Role Executive Director  Independent Director Independent Director 
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Board Committee(s) 
memberships

NIL Audit Committee 
(Chairman) 

Nominating 
Committee
(Chairman)

Remuneration 
Committee (Member)

Audit Committee 
(Member)

Nominating 
Committee (Member)

Remuneration 
Committee 
(Chairman)

Date of first appointment as 
Director

19 November 2015 22 June 2021 25 July 2022

Date of last re-election as a 
Director

4 March 2022 29 April 2022 NIL

Present directorship in 
other listed companies

NIL NIL Imperium Crown Limited 
(Executive Director and 
Chief Financial Officer).

Other principal 
commitments

NIL Director of Nature’s Farm 
Retail Pte. Ltd., the 
Company’s wholly-owned 
subsidiary.

Please see above.

1.5 Board Performance

Principle 5: The Board undertakes a formal annual assessment of its effectiveness as a 
whole, and that of each of its board committees and individual directors.

Provisions 5.1 and 5.2

The NC will perform an evaluation of the overall effectiveness of the Board and the Board 
Committees annually. The evaluation process will be undertaken as an internal exercise and 
involves Board members completing an evaluation form covering areas relating to a number of 
factors, including the discharge of the Board functions, access to information, participation at Board 
meetings and communication and guidance given by the Board to the Management.

Each Director assesses the Board’s performance as a whole and provides feedback to the NC. A 
similar evaluation process is also conducted by each of the Board Committees wherein the Board 
Committee members evaluate the relevant Board Committee and provide feedback to the NC. In 
reviewing the Board’s effectiveness as a whole and the Board Committees, the NC will take into 
account the feedback from the Board and the Board Committee members as well as the Director’s 
individual skills and experience. The results of the evaluation exercise will be considered by the 
NC, and a summary report will be compiled, with a view to implementing recommendations to 
enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

The contribution of each Director to the effectiveness of the Board and Board Committee is 
assessed on an individual basis and reviewed by the NC. In assessing an individual Director’s and 
Board Committee’s performance, factors that are to be taken into consideration include attendance 
at Board meetings and related activities, the adequacy of preparation for board meetings, 
contributions in specialist areas, generation of constructive ideas, and maintenance of 
independence.

The NC, having reviewed the overall performance of the Board and the Board Committees in terms 
of its roles and responsibilities and the conduct of its affairs as a whole and each individual 
Director’s performance, is of the view that the performance of the Board and each individual 
Director has been satisfactory. Each member of the NC has abstained from voting on any 
resolution and making any recommendations and/or participating in any deliberations of the NC in 
respect of the assessment of his performance or re-nomination as a Director.

During FY2022, no external facilitators were used for the evaluation process. 
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2. REMUNERATION MATTERS 
 
2.1 Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies 

 
Principle 6: The Board has a formal and transparent procedure for developing policies on 
director and executive remuneration, and for fixing the remuneration packages of individual 
directors and key management personnel. No director is involved in deciding his or her own 
remuneration. 
 
Provisions 6.1, 6.2 and 6.3 
 
The RC currently comprises Mr. Tan Keng Keat (Chen Qingjie) (Chairman) and Mr. Yeo Choon 
Tat (Member), who are each an Independent Non-Executive Director. The Company is taking 
active steps to source for suitable candidates to be appointed as Non-Executive Directors and/or 
Independent Directors, so that the RC will comprise at least three Directors, all of whom are Non-
Executive and the majority of whom, including the RC Chairman, are independent. As disclosed 
above, the Company has recently appointed Mr. Tan Keng Keat (Chen Qingjie) as an Independent 
Director on 25 July 2022 and is in the process of identifying and nominating another candidate to 
be appointed as an independent director. 
 
The RC functions under a set of written terms of reference which sets out its responsibilities as 
follows: 
 
(a) To review and recommend for endorsement to the entire Board, a framework for remuneration 

for the Directors and key management personnel of the Company; 
 

(b) To review the remuneration packages for each Executive Director as well as for key 
management personnel. The RC’s recommendations are submitted for endorsement by the 
entire Board. All aspects of remuneration, including but not limited to Directors’ fees, salaries, 
allowances, bonuses, options, share-based incentives, awards and benefits in kind are 
covered by the RC. As part of its review, the RC takes into consideration that the remuneration 
packages are in line with the Group’s staff remuneration guidelines and commensurate with 
their respective job scopes and level of responsibility;  

 
(c) In the case of service contracts, reviewing the Company’s obligations arising in the event of 

termination of the Executive Directors and key management personnel’s contracts of service, 
to ensure that such contracts of service contain fair and reasonable termination clauses; and 

 
(d) To carry out such other duties as may be agreed to by the RC and the Board. 
 
All aspects of remuneration, including but not limited to Directors’ fees, salaries, allowances, 
bonuses and benefits in kind, will be reviewed by the RC. The recommendations of the RC will be 
submitted to the Board for endorsement. Each member of the RC will abstain from voting on any 
resolution and making any recommendations in respect of his remuneration package. The 
overriding principle is that no Director should be involved in deciding his own remuneration. 
 
Provisions 6.4 
 
The RC may from time to time, and where necessary or required, engage independent external 
consultants in framing the remuneration policy and determining the level and mix of remuneration 
for Directors and Management and ensure that existing relationships, if any, between the Company 
and its appointed consultants will not affect the independence and objectivity of the consultants. 

 
The RC will meet to consider and review the remuneration packages of the Directors and key 
management personnel, including those employees related to the Executive Directors and 
controlling shareholders of the Company. No remuneration consultants were engaged by the 
Company in FY2022.  
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2.2 Level and Mix of Remuneration 
 
Principle 7: The level and structure of remuneration of the Board and key management 
personnel are appropriate and proportionate to the sustained performance and value 
creation of the company, taking into account the strategic objectives of the company. 
 
Provisions 7.1 and 7.3 
 
In setting remuneration packages, the Company takes into account pay and employment 
conditions within the same industry and in comparable companies, as well as the Group’s relative 
performance and the performance of individual Executive Directors and key management 
personnel. 
 
The Company’s compensation framework comprises fixed pay and short-term and long-term 
incentives. The Company subscribes to linking executive remuneration to corporate and individual 
performance, based on an annual appraisal of employees and using indicators such as core values, 
competencies, key result areas, performance rating, and potential of employees. 
 
Provision 7.2 
 
The Independent Directors and Non-Executive Directors of the Company do not have service 
agreements. They receive Directors’ fees, which take into account their contribution and other 
factors such as effort, time spent and responsibilities. The RC recognises the need to pay 
competitive fees to attract, motivate and retain such Independent Directors and Non-Executive 
Directors, yet not over-compensate them to the extent that their independence may be 
compromised. Directors’ fees are recommended by the Board for approval by the Shareholders at 
the Company’s AGMs. 
 

2.3 Disclosure on Remuneration 
 
Principle 8: The company is transparent on its remuneration policies, level and mix of 
remuneration, the procedure for setting remuneration, and the relationships between 
remuneration, performance and value creation. 
 
Provisions 8.1 and 8.3 

 
A breakdown of remuneration paid to or accrued to each Director for FY2022 is as follows:  
 

Fees (%) Salary (%) Bonus (%) Total (%) Fee for FY2022 (S$) 

Directors      
Liu Hui - - - - - 
Tay Chiew Sheng(1)(3) - - - - - 
Lim Heng Huat(1)(3) - - - - - 
Patel Anand 
Rameshchandra(2)(3) 

- - - - - 

Tan Chade Phang(4) - - - - - (7) 
Koh Boon Chiao(5) - - - - - (7)  
Yeo Choon Tat(6) - - - - - (7)  
 
Notes: 
 
(1) Mr. Tay Chiew Sheng (“Mr. Tay”) and Mr. Lim Heng Huat (“Mr. Lim”) were appointed as Independent Directors of the Company on 21 

March 2019 and resigned as Independent Directors of the Company on 19 March 2021. 
(2) Mr. Patel Anand Rameshchandra (“Mr. Patel”) was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company on 21 March 2019 and 

resigned as Independent Director of the Company on 22 March 2021. 
(3) The former Independent Directors Mr. Tay, Mr. Lim and Mr. Patel had been paid a total sum of S$58,581 in advance of the Company’s 

previous Annual General Meeting held on 31 December 2021 (the “FY2019 AGM”). At the FY2019 AGM, the resolution relating to 
payment of Directors’ fees to these former Independent Directors for the financial year ended 31 January 2020 (“FY2020”) was not 
passed by shareholders. The Company is in the midst of seeking recovery of the sums paid-out from these former Independent 
Directors, as well as legal advice in connection with such recovery. 

(4) Mr. Tan Chade Phang was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company on 23 March 2021 and resigned as Independent 
Director of the Company on 15 September 2021. 

(5) Mr. Koh Boon Chiao was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company on 29 March 2021 and resigned as Independent 
Director of the Company on 15 September 2021. 
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(6) Mr. Yeo Choon Tat was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company on 22 June 2021. 
(7) At the FY2019 AGM, the resolution relating to payment of Directors’ fees for FY2022 was not passed by shareholders. Accordingly, no 

Directors’ fees have been paid for FY2022. 
  

Given the highly competitive conditions of the industry in which the Group operates and the 
prevalent poaching of experienced executives, the Company believes that the disclosure of the 
total remuneration of each individual executive (who are not Directors or the CEO of the Company) 
(“Key Management Personnel”) as recommended by the Code may not be in the best of the 
Group’s interests. The Company has sought to provide the remuneration of these Key 
Management Personnel in the bands of S$250,000.  
 
During the period under review, the Group’s Key Management Personnel is Ms. Patricia Tien who 
was appointed Director, Sales & Marketing of Nature’s Farm Pte Ltd on 26 December 2019. The 
total remuneration (comprising salary and CPF contributions) for the Group’s Key Management 
Personnel for FY2022 was S$122,000. 
 
The Group does not have any share-based compensation scheme or any long-term incentive 
scheme. 
 
Provision 8.2  
 
The Group does not have employees who are substantial shareholders of the Company, or are 
immediate family members of a Director, the CEO or a substantial shareholder of the Company, 
and whose remuneration exceeds S$100,000 during FY2022. 

 
3. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT 

 
3.1 Risk Management and Internal Controls 

 
Principle 9: The Board is responsible for the governance of risk and ensures that 
Management maintains a sound system of risk management and internal controls, to 
safeguard the interests of the company and its shareholders.  
 
The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and aims to provide Shareholders with a balanced 
and understandable assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects by furnishing 
timely information and ensuring full disclosure of material information to Shareholders in 
compliance with statutory requirements and the listing manual (“Listing Manual”) of the SGX-ST. 
The Management is responsible to the Board and the Board itself is accountable to the 
Shareholders.  
 
Price sensitive information will be publicly released either before the Company meets with any 
group of investors or analysts or simultaneously with such meetings. Financial results and annual 
reports will also be announced or issued within legally prescribed periods. 
 
Provision 9.1 
 
The Board recognises the importance of sound internal controls and risk management practices 
to good corporate governance and the need to put in place a system of internal controls within the 
Group to safeguard Shareholders’ interests and the Group’s assets, and to manage risks. The 
Board affirms its overall responsibility for the Group’s system of internal controls and risk 
management. In this regard, the Board: 
 
(a) ensures that Management maintains a sound system of risk management to safeguard 

Shareholders’ interest and the Group’s assets; 
 

(b) determines the nature and extend of significant risks that the Board is willing to take in 
achieving its strategic objective; 

 
(c) determines the Company’s levels of risk tolerance and risk policies; 
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(d) oversees Management in the design, implementation and monitoring of risk management and 
internal control systems (including financial, operational and compliance risk), and ensures 
that the necessary corrective actions are taken on a timely basis; and

(e) reviews annually the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management policies and 
systems, and key internal controls.

There are formal procedures in place for the Company’s external auditors to report on the internal 
controls and risk management and to make recommendations to Management and to the AC 
independently in this regard.

The Board reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s material internal controls, including financial, 
operational, information technology and compliance controls and risk management. In this respect, 
the AC reviews the audit plans, and the findings of the Company’s external auditors and will ensure 
that the Company follows up on the auditors’ recommendations raised, if any, during the audit 
process. The key management personnel also regularly evaluates, monitors and reports to the AC 
on material risks. 

The Company refers to the Notice of Compliance issued by SGX RegCo dated 1 September 2020 
(the “1 Sep NOC”). In the 1 Sep NOC, SGX RegCo noted, inter alia, that the Company’s special 
auditors, RSM Corporate Advisory Pte Ltd (“RSM”) had recommended in its special audit report 
that as numerous internal control lapses and compliance issues that surfaced during their review, 
the Board and AC should re-assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal audit function, 
and consider the need to entrust the internal audit function to external professionals. 

In light of the foregoing, SGX RegCo directed the Company in the 1 Sep NOC to, inter alia, appoint 
an independent firm to undertake an independent review of the Company’s internal controls and 
governance practices so as to address and implement the recommendations made by RSM (the 
“Internal Control Review”).

On 22 January 2021, the Company released an announcement via SGXNET, informing 
Shareholders that it had on 13 January 2021 appointed an independent reviewer from a big four 
accounting firm to conduct the Internal Control Review (the “Independent Reviewer”). On 8 
August 2022, the Company released an announcement via SGXNET, informing Shareholders that 
the Independent Reviewer has completed the Internal Control Review and has provided its findings 
in a report issued to the Company (the "Review Report"). The Company further disclosed that the
Company has addressed and implemented a significant majority of the recommendations of the 
Review Report, and is further reviewing the Review Report and will, in consultation with its internal 
auditors, Audit Committee, management team and other professional advisors, take such steps to 
address the remaining areas of concern identified in the report and implement the remaining 
recommendations proposed.

Provision 9.2

For FY2022, the Board has received assurance from the Executive Director, Ms. Liu Hui, and the 
Senior Group Finance Manager, Jennifer Zhang that: (i) the financial records have been properly 
maintained and that the financial statements gave a true and fair view of the Company and the 
Group’s operations and finances; and (ii) the Company and the Group have put in place and will 
continue to maintain an effective, reliable and sound system of risk management, internal controls 
(addressing financial, operational, information technology and compliance risks) and corporate 
governance. 

The Board wishes to highlight that RSM, the special auditors by the Company, had identified 
certain internal control lapses and compliance issues in their report. In order to address these 
internal control lapses and compliance issues, the Company has engaged an independent 
reviewer from a big four accounting firm on 13 January 2021 to conduct the Internal Control Review,
and to advise on the steps needed to rectify these internal control lapses and compliance issues.
As disclosed above, the Company has addressed and implemented a significant majority of the 
recommendations of the Review Report, and is further reviewing the Review Report and will, in 
consultation with its internal auditors, Audit Committee, management team and other professional 
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advisors, take such steps to address the remaining areas of concern identified in the report and 
implement the remaining recommendations proposed. 
 
Based on the Company’s rectification actions pursuant to the Internal Control Review and based 
on strengthened internal controls maintained by the Group and work performed by the Group’s 
external auditors, the Board and the various Board Committees, the Board, with the concurrence 
of the AC, is satisfied and is of the opinion that the Group’s system of internal controls, including 
financial, operational, compliance and information technology controls, and risk management 
systems will be adequate and effective moving forward.  
 

3.2 Audit Committee 
 
Principle 10: The Board has an Audit Committee which discharges its duties objectively. 
 
Provisions 10.1 and 10.2 
 
The AC currently comprises Mr. Yeo Choon Tat (Chairman) and Mr. Tan Keng Keat (Chen Qingjie) 
(Member), who are each an Independent Non-Executive Director. The Company is taking active 
steps to source for suitable candidates to be appointed as Non-Executive Directors and/or 
Independent Directors, so that the AC will comprise at least three Directors, all of whom are non-
executive and the majority of whom, including the AC Chairman, are independent. As disclosed 
above, the Company has recently appointed Mr. Tan Keng Keat (Chen Qingjie) as an Independent 
Director on 25 July 2022 and is in the process of identifying and nominating another candidate to 
be appointed as an independent director. 
 
The AC functions under a set of written terms of reference which sets out its responsibilities as 
follows: 
 
(a) To review the audit plan of the external auditors of the Company and ensure the adequacy of 

the Company’s system of accounting controls and the co-operation given by the Company’s 
Management to the external auditors; 

 
(b) To review the scope and results of the audit and its cost effectiveness; 

 
(c) To review significant financial reporting issues and judgements so as to ensure integrity of the 

financial statements of the Company and any formal announcements relating to the 
Company’s financial performance;  

 
(d) To review the half-year and full year financial results before submission to the Board for 

approval; 
 

(e) To review the assistance given by Management to the external auditors; 
 

(f) To review the internal audit programme and ensure co-ordination between the internal and 
external auditors and Management; 

 
(g) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit procedures; 

 
(h) To discuss problems and concerns, if any, arising from audits, and any matters which the 

auditors may wish to discuss (without the presence of Management, where necessary); 
 

(i) To review interested person transactions (if any) falling within the scope of Chapter 9 of the 
Listing Manual; 

 
(j) To review the independence and objectivity of the external auditors annually; 

 
(k) To undertake such other reviews and projects as may be requested by the Board and report 

to the Board its findings from time to time on matters arising and requiring the attention of the 
AC;  
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(l) To undertake such other functions and duties as may be required by statute or the Listing 
Manual, and by such amendments made thereto from time to time; 

 
(m) To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of 

the external auditors, and approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external 
auditors; and 

 
(n) To review the adequacy of the Company’s internal financial controls, operational, information 

technology and compliance controls, and risk management policies and systems established 
by the Management.  

 
The AC assists the Board in discharging its responsibility to safeguard assets, maintain adequate 
accounting records, and develop and maintain an effective system of internal controls, with the 
overall objective of ensuring that Management creates and maintains an effective control 
environment in the Company. The AC provides a channel of communication between the Board of 
Directors, the Management and the external auditors of the Company on matters relating to audit. 
 
The AC has the power to conduct or to authorise investigations into any matters within the AC’s 
scope of responsibility. The AC will also commission and review the findings of internal 
investigations into matters where there is any suspected fraud or irregularity, or failure of internal 
controls, or infringement of any law, rule or regulation which has or is likely to have a material 
impact on the Group’s operating results or financial position. The AC is authorised to obtain 
independent professional advice if it deems necessary in the discharge of its responsibilities. Such 
expenses are to be borne by the Group. Each member of the AC will abstain from any deliberations 
and/or voting in respect of matters in which he is interested.  
 
For the year reported on, the AC reviewed and approved the scope of the audit plans of the external 
auditors.  
 
In its recommendation to the Board to approve the full year financial statements, the AC reviewed 
the results of the audit, significant findings or areas of emphasis and audit recommendations. In 
particular, the AC had, in consultation with Management and the external auditors, noted that 
certain key audit matters were highlighted in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 30 to 37 
of the Annual Report. Shareholders are advised to take note of these key audit matters in their 
review of the Financial Statements.   
 
The AC, having reviewed the scope and value of non-audit services provided to the Group by the 
Company’s external auditors, Crowe Horwath First Trust LLP (“Crowe”), an accounting firm 
registered with the ACRA, is satisfied that the nature and extent of such service will not prejudice 
the independence and objectivity of the Company’s external auditors. The AC had recommended 
the re-appointment of Crowe as its external auditors at the forthcoming AGM. The AC is satisfied 
that Crowe and the audit engagement team assigned to the audit have adequate resources and 
experience to meet its obligations. In this connection, the Company has complied with Rules 712 
and 715 of the Listing Manual.  

   
The aggregate amount of fees paid to the external auditors, broken down into audit and non-audit 
services, is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements on page 79 of the Annual Report. 
 
The Company’s external auditors provide periodic updates and briefings to the AC on changes or 
amendments to accounting standards to enable the members of the AC to keep abreast of such 
changes and its corresponding impact on the financial statements, if any. 
 
Provision 10.3 
 
No member of the AC is the former partner or Director of the Company’s existing auditing firm or 
audit corporation. 
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Provision 10.4 
 
The Board recognises the importance of maintaining an effective internal audit function to provide 
independent assurance over the soundness of the system of internal controls within the Group to 
safeguard Shareholders’ investments and the Company’s assets. The AC has the responsibility to 
review the adequacy of the internal audit function annually, review the internal audit program and 
ensure co-ordination between the Company’s external auditors and Management, and ensure that 
the internal audit carried out meets or exceeds the standards set by nationally or internationally 
recognised professional bodies. 
 
As disclosed above, the Company had recently completed its Internal Control Review. The 
Company intends to outsource its internal audit function to a reputable accounting or audit 
firm/corporation, and will be identifying and shortlisting suitable candidates.  
 
In selecting its internal auditors, the Company will ensure that the following minimum criteria are 
met: 
 
(a) the internal auditors are adequately resourced and independent of the activities it audits; 

 
(b) the internal auditors are staffed with persons with the relevant qualifications and experience; 

and 
 

(c) the internal auditors are able to carry out its function according to the standards set by 
nationally or internationally recognised professional bodies, including the Standards for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing set by The Institute of Internal Auditors. 

 
The internal auditors will report primarily to the AC Chairman and administratively, to the 
Management. The internal auditors will have unfettered access to all the Group’s documents, 
records, properties and personnel, including access to the AC. 
 
Provision 10.5 
 
The AC is given full access to and co-operation of the Management and has full discretion to invite 
any Director or executive officer to attend its meetings, and reasonable resources to enable it to 
discharge its functions. It meets with the external auditors and the internal auditors of the Company, 
without the presence of Management, at least once a year. 

 
4. SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND ENGAGEMENT 
 
4.1 Shareholder Rights and Conduct of General Meetings 

 
Principle 11: The company treats all shareholders fairly and equitably in order to enable 
them to exercise shareholders' rights and have the opportunity to communicate their views 
on matters affecting the company. The company gives shareholders a balanced and 
understandable assessment of its performance, position and prospects. 
 
In line with the continuous disclosure obligations of the Company, pursuant to the Listing Manual 
and the Companies Act 1967, the Board’s policy is that Shareholders are informed of all major 
developments that impact the Group regularly and on a timely basis. The Company believes in 
timely, fair and adequate disclosure of relevant information to the Shareholders and investors so 
that they will be apprised of the developments that may have a material impact on the price or 
value of Company’s securities.  
 
The Company does not practise selective disclosure and price sensitive information is publicly 
released on an immediate basis where required under the Listing Manual. However, in the event 
that unpublished material information is inadvertently disclosed to any selected person in the 
course of the Group’s interactions with the investing community, a media release or announcement 
will be released to the public via SGXNET to disclose and/or address such material information.  
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The Company welcomes the views of Shareholders on matters affecting the Company, whether at 
Shareholders’ meetings or on an ad-hoc basis. In line with the current COVID-19 measures, 
Shareholders are given the opportunity to communicate their views and to ask the Directors and 
Management questions regarding the Group by submitting their questions prior to Shareholders’ 
meetings. The Company is open to meetings with investors and analysts, and in conducting such 
meetings, is mindful to ensure fair disclosure. 
 
Provision 11.1 
 
The AGM of the Company is a principal forum for dialogue and interaction with all Shareholders. 
The Board encourages Shareholders to attend the Company’s general meetings to ensure a 
greater level of shareholder participation and to meet with the Board and key management staff so 
as to stay informed on the Group’s developments. The Directors regard AGMs as an opportunity 
to communicate with Shareholders and encourage greater shareholder participation. 
 
All Shareholders receive annual reports and are informed of Shareholders’ meetings through 
notices published on SGXNET and reports or circulars sent to Shareholders. Shareholders are 
invited to submit any questions they may have on the motions to be debated and decided upon 
prior to such meetings. In line with the current COVID-19 measures, Shareholders will not be able 
to attend the AGM in person, but is given the option to appoint the Chairman of the AGM as their 
proxy to attend, speak and vote on their behalf at the AGM.  
 
Provision 11.2 
 
At Shareholders’ meetings, each distinct issue is proposed as a separate resolution. Each item of 
special business included in the notice of meetings will be accompanied by the relevant 
explanatory notes. This is to enable Shareholders to understand the nature and effect of the 
proposed resolutions. 
 
Provision 11.3 
 
The Directors, including the Chairman of the Board and each Board Committee are present at the 
AGM to address Shareholders’ questions which have been submitted in advance. The Company 
held its annual general meeting in respect of the financial year ended 31 January 2020 on 4 March 
2022 and its general meeting in respect of the financial year ended 31 January 2021 on 29 April 
2022. At the aforementioned meetings, the Independent Director of the Company, Mr. Yeo Choon 
Tat, was present to address Shareholders’ questions which have been submitted in advance. The 
reasons for the absence of Ms. Liu Hui was also disclosed to all Shareholders.  
 
The Chairpersons of the AC, RC and NC are normally available at Shareholders’ meetings to 
answer questions relating to the work of these Board Committees which have been submitted in 
advance. The Company’s external auditors will also be present to assist the Directors in addressing 
queries by Shareholders, if necessary.  
 
Provision 11.4 
 
The Company has not amended its Constitution to provide for absentia voting methods. Voting in 
absentia and by electronic mail may only be possible following careful study to ensure that integrity 
of the information and authentication of the identity of shareholders through digital media or the 
internet is not compromised. 
 
Provision 11.5 
 
The Company Secretary records minutes of all general meetings, including questions and 
comments from Shareholders together with the responses of the Board and Management. These 
are published on SGXNET within one month after the general meeting.  
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Provision 11.6

The Company does not have a fixed dividend policy. The payment of dividend is deliberated by 
the Board annually having regard to various factors, including the Company’s earnings, general 
financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements, cash flow, general business 
condition, development plans and other factors as the Directors may deem appropriate. Where 
dividends are not paid, the Company discloses the reasons.

4.2 Engagement with Shareholders

Principle 12: The company communicates regularly with its shareholders and facilitates the 
participation of shareholders during general meetings and other dialogues to allow 
shareholders to communicate their views on various matters affecting the company.

Provisions 12.1, 12.2 and 12.3

The Company does not have an investor relations policy in place. Communication with 
Shareholders is managed by the Board. Pertinent information is communicated to Shareholders 
on a regular and timely basis through the following means:

(a) results and annual reports are announced or issued within the mandatory period;

(b) material information is disclosed in a comprehensive, accurate and timely manner via 
SGXNET and the press; and

(c) the Company’s annual and extraordinary general meetings.

Whenever the Company is unable to comply with the relevant regulatory timelines, the Company 
will submit the necessary applications for waivers and extensions of time to the relevant regulators 
and promptly announce such applications via SGXNET to update Shareholders on the same.

5. ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Principle 13: The Board adopts an inclusive approach by considering and balancing the 
needs and interests of material stakeholders, as part of its overall responsibility to ensure 
that the best interests of the company are served.

Provisions 13.1 and 13.2

The Company engages its stakeholders through different channels to establish, address and 
monitor the material environmental, social and governance factors and economic performance 
(collectively known as “Sustainability Factors”) of the Company’s operations and its impact on 
the various stakeholders.

The Company publishes a sustainability report for each financial year that which provides details 
its strategy and key areas of focus in relation to the management of stakeholder relationships. For 
the year, the sustainability report will be prepared in accordance with the Global Reporting 
Initiatives Standards: Core option and disclose on the Company’s Sustainability Factors which 
includes (i) economic performance, (ii) waste management, (iii) product quality, (iv) training and 
education, (v) occupational health and safety and (vi) equality and diversity in the workplace.

For more information on the Company’s approach to sustainability, please refer to the Company’s 
Sustainability Report which will be released shortly after the forthcoming AGM.

Provision 13.3

The Company currently does not have a corporate website. However, the Company’s operating 
subsidiary, Nature’s Farm Pte Ltd, maintains its own website.
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6. MATERIAL CONTRACTS 
 
There were no material contracts entered into by the Company or its subsidiaries involving the 
interests of the Directors or controlling shareholders, which are either still subsisting at the end of 
FY2022 or if not then subsisting, entered into since the end of the previous financial year. 

 
7. DEALINGS IN SECURITIES 

 
The Company has adopted a policy on dealings in securities in accordance with Rule 1207(19) of 
the Listing Manual. The Directors and officers are prohibited to deal in the Company’s securities, 
during the period beginning: one (1) month before the date of the announcement of the full year 
results, and two (2) weeks before the date of the announcement of the half-year results or quarterly 
results (as the case may be) and ending on the date of the announcement of the relevant results.  
 
In addition, the officers of the Company are reminded (i) not to deal with the Company’s securities 
on short term considerations or if they are in possession of unpublished material price sensitive 
information; and (ii) that they are required to report on their dealings in shares of the Company.  
 
The Directors and employees of the Company are also advised to observe the insider trading laws 
at all times even when dealing in securities within the permitted trading periods. 
 
The Company wishes to highlight for completeness that trading in its shares has been suspended 
since 1 April 2019. 
 

 
8. INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTION 

 
The Group has established internal procedures to ensure compliance with the requirement of 
Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual on interested person transactions. When a potential conflict of 
interest occurs, the Director concerned will be excluded from discussions and refrain from 
exercising any influence over other members of the Board. 
 
During FY2022, the Group did not have a shareholders’ mandate pursuant to Rule 920 of the 
Listing Manual. The Company wishes to highlight that it does not have any Interested Person 
Transactions exceeding $100,000 in aggregate value in FY2022. 
 
 

9. WHISTLE-BLOWING POLICY 
 

To encourage proper work ethics and deter any wrongdoing within the Group, the Group has 
established a whistleblowing policy that seeks to provide a channel for the Group’s employees and 
external parties to raise concerns in good faith and in confidence about possible improprieties in 
matters of financial reporting or other matters such as possible corruption, suspected fraud and 
other non-compliance issues. The AC will address the issues and/or concerns raised and ensure 
that necessary arrangements are in place for the independent investigation of issues and/or 
concerns raised by the employees and external parties and for appropriate follow-up actions. 
Details of the whistle-blowing policies and arrangements have been made available to the Group’s 
employees and external parties. Information received pertaining to whistle blowing will be treated 
with confidentiality and restricted to the designated persons-in-charge of the investigation to protect 
the identity and interest of whistle-blowers. 
 
The AC Chairman has received no complaint as at the date of this Annual Report.  
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The Board is responsible for the governance of risk. The risk management systems are appropriate to each of its operating 

subsidiaries. This framework is designed to enable management to identify and manage those essential risks of the respective 

businesses and operations.

The following are the major risk exposure of the Group:-

1. Political, Social, Economic Risks

 We are affected by the political, social and economic conditions in the countries in which the Group operates and where 

our customers and suppliers are located. Factors such as fl uctuations in exchange rates, economic recession, infl ation, 

changes in governmental or regulatory policies, labour conditions, implementation of import and export controls can 

affect the Group’s operations and fi nancial results.

2. Financial Risks

 The Group is exposed to a variety of fi nancial risks, namely credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency risks. The 

identifi cation and management of such risks are outlined on pages 82 to 87 of the Annual Report (under Note 25 to the 

Financial Statements).

3. Operational Risk

 Inherent in all business activities, it is potential for fi nancial loss and business instability arising from failures in internal 

controls, operational processes or the system that supports them.

 To minimise exposure to such risks, the Group has put in place operating manuals, standard operating procedures, 

delegation of authority guidelines and a regular reporting framework which encompasses operational and fi nancial 

reporting.

 The Group also reviews risk transfer mechanism such as insurance to insure against risk and to determine insurance 

levels which are appropriate in terms of cost of cover and risk profi les of the businesses in which it operates.

4. Investment Risk

 The Group is exposed to investment risk for all its major investments.

 To mitigate such risk, all major investments will be subjected to vigorous scrutiny to ensure that they meet the required 

rates of return, taking into consideration of all relevant risk factors such as operating currency and liquidity risks. In 

addition, the Board requires that each major investment proposal submitted to the Board for approval is accompanied by 

a comprehensive risk assessment of the proposed investment.

5. Compliance and Legal Risk

 Compliance risk arises from a failure or inability to comply with the laws and regulations, applicable to the various 

industries. Non-compliance may lead to fi nes, public reprimands, enforced suspension of operations or withdrawal of 

license to operate.

 The responsibility to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations vests with the respective operating heads. 

Legal risk includes risks arising from actual or potential violations of law or regulation, inadequate documentation, failure 

to protect the Group’s property etc.

 The Group identifi es and manages legal risk through use of its external legal advisers.
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ANALYSIS OF
SHAREHOLDINGS

As at 15 August 2022

Note: 
  
(1) Madam Lo Ching is deemed to have an interest in 25,008,120 ordinary shares in the capital of the Company held by 

Creative Elite Holdings Limited (“CEHL”) through her 100% shareholding in CEHL.
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CAMSING HEALTHCARE LIMITED
(Company Registration No. 197903888Z)

(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the shareholders of Camsing Healthcare Limited 

(“Company”) will be held by way of electronic means (via LIVE WEBCAST and AUDIO ONLY MEANS) at 10.00 am on 

7 September 2022 to transact the following business:

This Notice along with its accompanying Proxy Form has been made available on SGXNet which may be accessed at the URL: 

http://www.sgx.com/securities/company-announcements. A printed copy of this Notice and the accompanying Proxy Form 
will NOT be despatched to Shareholders.

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the fi nancial year ended 31 January 

2022 together with the Directors’ Statement and Auditors’ Report thereon. (Resolution 1)

2. To re-elect Ms. Liu Hui who is retiring under Articles 90 and 91 of the Constitution, as Director of 

the Company. 

[See Explanatory Notes (i)] (Resolution 2)

3. To re-elect Mr Tan Keng Keat (Chen Qingjie) who is retiring under Article 96 of the Constitution, as 

Director of the Company.

[See Explanatory Notes (ii)] (Resolution 3)

4. To re-appoint Messrs. Crowe Horwath First Trust LLP as Auditors and to authorise the Directors to 

fi x their remuneration. (Resolution 4)

5. To transact any other ordinary business which may be properly transacted at an annual general 

meeting.

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fi t, to pass the following resolution (with or without amendments) as Ordinary 

Resolution:-

6. General Mandate to allot and issue new shares in the capital of the Company

That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act 1967 and Rule 806 of the Listing Manual of 

the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”), the Directors of the Company be 

authorised and empowered to:

(a) (i) issue shares in the Company (“shares”) whether by way of rights, bonus or 

otherwise; and/or

(ii) make or grant offers, agreements or options (collectively, “Instruments”) that 

might or would require shares to be issued, including but not limited to the creation 

and issue of (as well as adjustments to) options, warrants, debentures or other 

instruments convertible into shares, at any time and upon such terms and conditions 

and for such purposes and to such persons as the Directors of the Company may in 

their absolute discretion deem fi t; and

(b) (notwithstanding the authority conferred by this Resolution may have ceased to be in force) 

issue shares in pursuance of any Instruments made or granted by the Directors of the 

Company while this Resolution was in force,
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provided that:

(1) the aggregate number of shares (including shares to be issued in pursuance of the 

Instruments, made or granted pursuant to this Resolution) to be issued pursuant to this 

Resolution shall not exceed fi fty per centum (50%) of the total number of issued shares 

(excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings) in the capital of the Company (as 

calculated in accordance with sub-paragraph (2) below), of which the aggregate number of 

shares to be issued other than on a pro rata basis to shareholders of the Company shall not 

exceed twenty per centum (20%) of the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury 

shares and subsidiary holdings) in the capital of the Company (as calculated in accordance 

with sub-paragraph (2) below);

(2) (subject to such calculation as may be prescribed by the SGX-ST) for the purpose of 

determining the aggregate number of shares that may be issued under sub-paragraph 

(1) above, the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares and subsidiary 

holdings) shall be based on the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares 

and subsidiary holdings) in the capital of the Company at the time of the passing of this 

Resolution, after adjusting for:

(a) new shares arising from the conversion or exercise of any convertible securities;

(b) new shares arising from exercising share options or vesting of share awards which 

are outstanding or subsisting at the time of the passing of this Resolution, provided 

the options or awards were granted in compliance with Part VIII of Chapter 8 of the 

Listing Manual of the SGX-ST; and

(c) any subsequent bonus issue, consolidation or subdivision of shares;

(3) in exercising the authority conferred by this Resolution, the Company shall comply with 

the provisions of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST for the time being in force (unless such 

compliance has been waived by the SGX-ST) and the Constitution of the Company; and

(4) unless revoked or varied by the Company in a general meeting, such authority shall 

continue in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or 

the date by which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company is required by law to be 

held, whichever is earlier.

[See Explanatory Notes (iii)] (Resolution 5)

By Order of the Board

Lim Kok Meng

Company Secretary 

23 August 2022
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Explanatory Notes:

(i) Ms. Liu Hui will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company pursuant to Ordinary Resolution 2 in item 2 above, remain as the Executive 

Director of the Company.

(ii) Mr. Tan Keng Keat (Chen Qingjie) will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company pursuant to Ordinary Resolution 3 in item 3 above, 

remain as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and Nominating Committee. He will be 

considered independent for the purpose of Rule 704(8) of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST.

(iii) Ordinary Resolution 5 in item 6 above, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company, effective until the conclusion of the next 

annual general meeting of the Company, or the date by which the next annual general meeting of the Company is required by law to be 

held or such authority is varied or revoked by the Company in a general meeting, whichever is the earlier, to issue shares, make or grant 

Instruments convertible into shares and to issue shares pursuant to such Instruments, up to a number not exceeding, in total, 50% of the 

total number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings) in the capital of the Company, of which up to 20% may 

be issued other than on a pro-rata basis to shareholders.

 For determining the aggregate number of shares that may be issued, the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares and 

subsidiary holdings) will be calculated based on the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings) in 

the capital of the Company at the time this Ordinary Resolution is passed after adjusting for new shares arising from the conversion or 

exercise of any convertible securities or share options or vesting of share awards which are outstanding or subsisting at the time when 

this Ordinary Resolution is passed provided the options or awards were granted in compliance with Part VIII of Chapter 8 of the Listing 

Manual of the SGX-ST, and any subsequent bonus issue, consolidation or subdivision of shares.

Notes: 

1. The AGM is being convened, and will be held, by electronic means pursuant to the COVID-19 (Temporary Measures) (Alternative 

Arrangements for Meetings for Companies, Variable Capital Companies, Business Trusts, Unit Trusts and Debenture Holders) Order 2020 

(the “Order”).

2. Pursuant to the Order, the Company will implement alternative arrangements relating to attendance at the AGM by electronic means. 

Members will not be able to attend the AGM in person. Members will be able to watch the proceedings of the AGM through a “live” 

webcast via their mobile phones, tablets or computers or listen to these proceedings through a “live” audio feed via telephone. In order to 

do so, members who wish to watch the “live” webcast or listen to the “live” audio feed must pre-register by 10.00 am on 30 August 2022 

at the pre-registration website at the URL: https://globalmeeting.bigbangdesign.co/ch2022/. Following authentication of their status as 

members, authenticated members will receive email instructions on how to access the webcast and audio feed of the proceedings of the 

AGM by 4.00 pm on 31 August 2022. Members who do not receive an email by 4.00 pm on 31 August 2022, but have registered by 10.00 

am on 30 August 2022 should contact the Company’s webcast vendor via email at webcast@bigbangdesign.co. 

 Persons holding shares through relevant intermediaries who wish to participate in the AGM via webcast should contact their relevant 

intermediaries through which they hold such shares as soon as possible in order for the necessary arrangements to be made for their 

participation in the AGM.

3. Members who pre-register to watch the “live” webcast or listen to the “live” audio feed may also submit questions relating to the 

resolution to be tabled for approval at the AGM during the pre-registration process for the AGM. Please note that members will not be 

able to ask questions at the AGM “live” during the webcast and the audio feed. 

 All questions must be submitted by 11.59 pm on 30 August 2022.

 The Company will address substantial questions relevant to the resolutions to be tabled for approval at the AGM as received from 

Shareholders by way of an announcement released on SGXNet by 10.00 am on 3 September 2022. The Company will, within one month 

after the date of the AGM, publish the minutes of the AGM on SGXNet.

4.  A member will not be able to attend the AGM in person. Members (whether individuals or corporates) who wish to exercise their voting 

rights at the AGM must appoint the Chairman of the AGM as their proxy to attend, speak and vote on their behalf at the AGM. In 

appointing the Chairman of the AGM as proxy, members (whether individuals or corporates) must give specifi c instructions as to voting, or 

abstentions from voting, in the form of proxy, failing which the appointment will be treated as invalid.

5. The Chairman of the AGM, as proxy, need not be a member of the Company. 
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6. The instrument appointing the Chairman of the AGM as proxy must:

 (a) if sent personally or by post, be received at the registered offi ce of the Company at 24 Raffl es Place, #20-03 Clifford Centre, 

Singapore 048621; or

 (b) if submitted by email, be received by the Company, by email at enquiry.camsing@naturesfarm.com,

 in either case no later than 10.00 am on 5 September 2022, and in default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid. A member 

who wishes to submit an instrument of proxy must fi rst download, complete and sign the proxy form, before submitting it by post to the 

address provided above, or before scanning and sending it by email to the email address provided above.

7. The Annual Report has been made available on SGXNet and may be accessed at https://www.sgx.com/securities/company-announcements.

8. The instrument appointing the Chairman of the AGM as proxy must be signed by the appointor or his attorney duly authorised in writing. 

Where the instrument appointing the Chairman of the AGM as proxy is executed by a corporation, it must be either under its common seal 

or signed on its behalf by a duly authorised offi cer or attorney. 

 

9. Where an instrument appointing the Chairman of the AGM as proxy is signed on behalf of the appointor by an attorney, the power of 

attorney (or other authority) or a duly certifi ed copy thereof must (failing previous registration with the Company) be attached to the 

instrument of proxy, failing which the instrument may be treated as invalid.

10. The Company shall be entitled to reject the instrument appointing the Chairman of the AGM as proxy if it is incomplete, improperly 

completed, illegible or where the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specifi ed in 

the instrument appointing the Chairman of the AGM as proxy (such as in the case where the appointor submits more than one instrument 

of proxy).

11. In the case of shares entered in the Depository Register, the Company may reject an instrument of proxy if the member, being the 

appointor, is not shown to have shares entered against his/her/its name in the Depository Register as at 72 hours before the time 

appointed for holding the meeting, as certifi ed by The Central Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company.

Important Reminders 

As the COVID-19 situation is still evolving, the Company reserves the right to take such further precautionary measures as may be appropriate 

up to the date of the AGM, including any precautionary measures required or recommended by the government or any regulatory bodies or 

government agencies from time to time, in order to curb the spread of COVID-19. 

Accordingly, the Company may be required to change its AGM arrangements at short notice in accordance with any precautionary measures 

required or recommended by the government or any regulatory bodies or government agencies from time to time. Shareholders are advised to 

closely monitor announcements made by the Company on SGXNET.

Personal data privacy:

By (a) submitting an instrument appointing the Chairman of the AGM as proxy to attend, speak and vote at the AGM and/or any adjournment 

thereof, (b) completing the pre-registration in accordance with this Notice, or (c) submitting any question prior to the AGM in accordance with 

this Notice, a member of the Company consents to the collection, use and disclosure of the member’s personal data by the Company (or its 

agents or service providers) for the following purposes: 

(i) processing, administration and analysis by the Company (or its agents or service providers) of proxy forms appointing the Chairman of the 

AGM as proxy for the AGM (including any adjournment thereof); 

(ii) processing of the pre-registration for purposes of granting access to members to the “live” webcast or “live” audio feed of the AGM 

proceedings and providing them with any technical assistance where necessary; 

(iii) addressing substantial and relevant questions from members received before the AGM and if necessary, following up with the relevant 

members in relation to such questions; 

(iv) preparation and compilation of the attendance lists, proxy lists, minutes and other documents relating to the AGM (including any 

adjournment thereof); and

(v) enabling the Company (or its agents or service providers) to comply with any applicable laws, listing rules, take-over rules, regulations 

and/or guidelines.
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Ms. Liu Hui, who is retiring pursuant to Articles 90 and 91 of the Company’s Constitution and Rule 720(5) of the Listing Manual 

of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”) and Mr. Tan Keng Keat (Chen Qingjie), who is retiring pursuant 

to Article 96 of the Company’s Constitution, will be seeking re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”) of 

the Company scheduled to be held by way of electronic means (via LIVE WEBCAST and AUDIO ONLY MEANS) at 10.00 a.m. on 

7 September 2022 under Resolutions 2 and 3 as set out in the Notice of AGM dated 23 August 2022.

Pursuant to Rule 720(6) of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST, the information relating to the Directors proposed for re-election 

and appointment set out in Appendix 7.4.1 as required under the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST is disclosed in the tables below. 

Name of Director Ms. Liu Hui Mr. Tan Keng Keat (Chen Qingjie)

Date of Appointment 19 November 2015 25 July 2022

Date of last re-appointment (if applicable) 4 March 2022 Not applicable

Age 52 46

Country of principal residence China Singapore

The Board’s comments on this 

appointment (including rationale, selection 

criteria, and the search and nomination 

process)

Not applicable Not applicable

Whether appointment is executive, and if 

so, the area of responsibility

Executive 

Ms. Liu Hui is responsible for developing 

and directing organizational strategy as 

well as overseeing day-to-day business 

and corporate activities.

Independent and non-executive

Job Title (e.g. Lead ID, AC Chairman, AC 

Member etc.)

 Executive Director

 Member of the Board of Directors

 Independent, Non-Executive 

Director

 Chairman of the Remuneration 

Committee, Member of the Audit 

Committee and Nominating 

Committee

Professional Qualifi cations EMBA Degree, HEC Business School July 1997 to June 2000

 Bachelor of Accountancy (Honours), 

Nanyang Technological University

January 2004 to present

 Chartered Accountant, Institute of 

Singapore Chartered Accountants
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Name of Director Ms. Liu Hui Mr. Tan Keng Keat (Chen Qingjie)

Working experience and occupation(s) 

during the past 10 years

May 2020 to Present

 Beijing Zhiheng Internet Technology 

Private Limited Company – Deputy 

General Manager

January 2016 to September 2021

 Camsing International Holding 

Limited (MH Development Limited) – 

Executive Director

2012 to 2018

 Camsing Global Group – Vice 

President

2021 to present

 Executive Director, Imperium Crown 

Limited (listed on the Catalist of the 

Singapore Exchange)

2016 to present

 Chief Financial Officer, Imperium 

Crown Limited listed on the Catalist 

of the Singapore Exchange)

2014 to 2016

 Director, Ethania Pte Ltd

2013 to 2014

 Chief Financial Officer, Aquaint 

Capital Holdings Limited (previously 

listed on the Australia Securities 

Exchange)

2010 to 2013

 Group Financial Controller and 

Company Secretary, Capital Drilling 

Limited (listed on the Main Market 

of the London Stock Exchange) 

Shareholding interest in the listed issuer 

and its subsidiaries

Nil Nil

Any relationship (including immediate family 

relationships) with any existing director, 

existing executive offi cer, the issuer and/or 

substantial shareholder of the listed issuer 

or of any of its principal subsidiaries

Nil Nil

Conflict of interest (including any 

competing business)

Nil Nil

Undertaking (in the format set out in 

Appendix 7.7) under Rule 720(1) has been 

submitted to the listed issuer

Yes Yes

Other Principal Commitments Including Directorships

Past (for the last 5 years) Directorships

 Camsing International Holding 

Limited (MH Development Limited)

Nil

Present Directorships

 Camsing Healthcare Limited

Directorships

 Camsing Healthcare Limited

 Imperium Crown Limited 
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Name of Director Ms. Liu Hui Mr. Tan Keng Keat (Chen Qingjie)

Information required pursuant to Rule 704(7) of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST

(a) Whether at any time during the last 

10 years, an application or a petition 

under any bankruptcy law of any 

jurisdiction was fi led against him or 

against a partnership of which he 

was a partner at the time when he 

was a partner or at any time within 2 

years from the date he ceased to be 

a partner?

No No

(b) Whether at any time during the last 

10 years, an application or a petition 

under any law of any jurisdiction 

was fi led against an entity (not being 

a partnership) of which he was a 

director or an equivalent person or 

a key executive, at the time when 

he was a director or an equivalent 

person or a key executive of that 

entity or at any time within 2 years 

from the date he ceased to be a 

director or an equivalent person or 

a key executive of that entity, for 

the winding up or dissolution of 

that entity or, where that entity is 

the trustee of a business trust, that 

business trust, on the ground of 

insolvency?

No No

(c) Whether there is any unsatisfied 

judgment against him?

No No

(d) Whether he has ever been convicted 

of any offence, in Singapore or 

elsewhere, involving fraud or 

dishonesty which is punishable 

with imprisonment, or has been the 

subject of any criminal proceedings 

(including any pending criminal 

proceedings of which he is aware) for 

such purpose?

No No

(e) Whether he has ever been convicted 

of any offence, in Singapore or 

elsewhere, involving a breach of any 

law or regulatory requirement that 

relates to the securities or futures 

industry in Singapore or elsewhere, or 

has been the subject of any criminal 

proceedings (including any pending 

criminal proceedings of which he is 

aware) for such breach?

No No
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Name of Director Ms. Liu Hui Mr. Tan Keng Keat (Chen Qingjie)

(f) Whether at any time during the 

last 10 years, judgment has been 

entered against him in any civil 

proceedings in Singapore or 

elsewhere involving a breach of 

any law or regulatory requirement 

that relates to the securities or 

futures industry in Singapore or 

elsewhere, or a finding of fraud, 

misrepresentation or dishonesty on 

his part, or he has been the subject 

of any civil proceedings (including 

any pending civil proceedings of 

which he is aware) involving an 

allegation of fraud, misrepresentation 

or dishonesty on his part?

No No

(g) Whether he has ever been convicted 

in Singapore or elsewhere of any 

offence in connection with the 

formation or management of any 

entity or business trust?

No No

(h) Whether he has ever been 

disqualifi ed from acting as a director 

or an equivalent person of any entity 

(including the trustee of a business 

trust), or from taking part directly or 

indirectly in the management of any 

entity or business trust?

No No

(i) Whether he has ever been the 

subject of any order, judgment 

or ruling of any court, tribunal or 

governmental body, permanently 

or temporarily enjoining him from 

engaging in any type of business 

practice or activity?

No No

(j) Whether he has ever, to his 

knowledge, been concerned with 

the management or conduct, in 

Singapore or elsewhere, of the affairs 

of:–

 (i) any corporation which has been 

investigated for a breach of any 

law or regulatory requirement 

governing corporations in 

Singapore or elsewhere; or

No No

 (ii) any entity (not being a 

corporation) which has been 

investigated for a breach of any 

law or regulatory requirement 

governing such entities in 

Singapore or elsewhere; or

No No
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Name of Director Ms. Liu Hui Mr. Tan Keng Keat (Chen Qingjie)

 (iii) any business trust which 

has been investigated for a 

breach of any law or regulatory 

requ i rement  govern ing 

business trusts in Singapore or 

elsewhere; or

No No

 (iv) any entity or business trust 

which has been investigated 

for a breach of any law or 

regulatory requirement that 

relates to the securities or 

futures industry in Singapore or 

elsewhere, 

 in connection with any matter 

occurring or arising during that period 

when he was so concerned with the 

entity or business trust?

No No

(k) Whether he has been the subject 

of any current or past investigation 

or disciplinary proceedings, or has 

been reprimanded or issued any 

warning, by the Monetary Authority 

of Singapore or any other regulatory 

authority, exchange, professional 

body or government agency, whether 

in Singapore or elsewhere?

No No

Disclosure applicable to the appointment of Director only.

Any prior experience as a director of an 

issuer listed on the Exchange? If yes, 

please provide details of prior experience. 

If no, please state if the director has 

attended or will be attending training on 

the roles and responsibilities of a director 

of a listed issuer or prescribed by the 

Exchange. Please provide details of 

relevant experience and the nominating 

committee’s reasons for not requiring the 

director to undergo training as prescribed 

by the Exchange (if applicable).

Not applicable Not applicable



CAMSING HEALTHCARE LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

(Company Registration No. 197903888Z)

PROXY FORM

Annual General Meeting

This form of proxy has been made available 

on SGXNet and may be accessed at the URL 

https://www.sgx.com/securities/company-announcements. 

A printed copy of this form of proxy will NOT be dispatched 

to members.

IMPORTANT

1. Pursuant to the COVID-19 (Temporary Measures) (Alternative Arrangements for Meetings for 

Companies, Variable Capital Companies, Business Trusts, Unit Trusts and Debenture Holders) 

Order 2020, the Company will implement alternative arrangements relating to attendance 

at the AGM by electronic means. The Members will not be able to attend the AGM in person. 

Members will be able to watch the proceedings of the AGM through a “live” webcast via 

their mobile phones, tablets or computers or listen to these proceedings through a “live” 

audio feed via telephone. In order to do so, members who wish to watch the “live” webcast 

or listen to the “live” audio feed must pre-register by 10.00 am on 30 August 2022, at 

https://globalmeeting.bigbangdesign.co/ch2022/. Following authentication of their status as 

members, authenticated members will receive email instructions on how to access the webcast 

and audio feed of the proceedings of the AGM by 4.00pm on 31 August 2022. Members who 

do not receive an email by 4.00 pm on 31 August 2022 should contact the Company’s webcast 

vendor by email at webcast@bigbangdesign.co.

2. CPF/SRS Investors who wish to appoint the Chairman of the AGM as a proxy should approach 

their respective CPF Agent Banks/ SRS Operators to submit their voting instructions by at least 

7 working days before the AGM. This Proxy Form is not valid for use by CPF/SRS Investors and 

shall be ineffective for all intents and purposes if used or purported to be used by CPF/SRS 

Investors.

3. By submitting an instrument appointing the Chairman of the AGM as proxy to attend, speak and 

vote at the AGM and/or any adjournment thereof, a member of the Company (and his appointed 

proxy(ies)) consents to the collection, use and disclosure of their personal data by the Company 

(or its agents or service providers) for such purposes and/or otherwise with the personal data 

privacy terms set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting dated 23 August 2022.

I/We*  (full name in capital letters)

 (NRIC No. /Passport No. /Company Registration No.*) 

of  (full address)

being a member/members* of Camsing Healthcare Limited (“Company”), hereby appoint the Chairman of the annual general 

meeting of the Company (“AGM”), as my/our* proxy to vote for me/us* on my/our* behalf at the AGM to be held by way of 

electronic means (via LIVE WEBCAST and AUDIO ONLY MEANS) at 10.00 am on 7 September 2022 and at any adjournment 

thereof. 

I/We* have indicated with an “X” in the appropriate box against each item below on how I/we* wish the Chairman of the AGM as 

my/our* proxy to vote, or to abstain from voting.

No. Resolutions relating to: For Against Abstain

Ordinary Business

1. Adoption of the Audited Financial Statements for the fi nancial year ended 31 

January 2022 together with the Directors’ Statement and Auditors’ Report thereon

2. Re-election of Ms. Liu Hui as a Director of the Company

3. Re-election of Mr. Tan Keng Keat (Chen Qingjie) as a Director of the Company

4. Re-appointment of Messrs Crowe Horwath First Trust LLP as the Auditors of the 

Company and authorise the Directors to fi x their remuneration

Special Business

5. Authority to Directors to allot and issue new shares pursuant to Section 161 of 

the Companies Act 1967

Notes: Voting will be conducted by poll. If you wish the Chairman of the AGM as your proxy to cast all your votes “For” or “Against” a 

resolution, please indicate with an “X” in the “For” or “Against” box provided in respect of that resolution. Alternatively, please indicate the 

number of votes “For” or “Against” in the “For or “Against” box provided in respect of that resolution. If you wish the Chairman of the AGM 

as your proxy to abstain from voting on a resolution, please indicate with an “X” in the “Abstain” box provided in respect of that resolution. 

Alternatively, please indicate the number of shares that the Chairman of the AGM as your proxy is directed to abstain from voting in the 

“Abstain” box provided in respect of that resolution. In the absence of specifi c directions in respect of a resolution, the appointment of Chairman 

of the AGM as your proxy for that resolution will be treated as invalid.

Dated this _____________day of __________________ 2022

Total number of Shares in No. of Shares

(a) CDP Register

(b) Register of Members

Signature(s) of Shareholder(s) and/or 

Common Seal of Corporate Shareholder

*Delete where inapplicable

IMPORTANT: PLEASE READ NOTES OVERLEAF BEFORE COMPLETING THIS PROXY FORM





N OTES: 

IMPORTANT

1.  I f the member has shares entered against his name in the Depository Register (maintained by The Central Depository (Pte) Limited), he 

should insert that number of shares. If the member has shares registered in his name in the Register of Members (maintained by or on 

behalf of the Company), he should insert that number of shares. If the member has shares entered against his name in the Depository 

Register and shares registered in his name in the Register of Members, he should insert the aggregate number of shares. If no number is 

inserted, this form of proxy will be deemed to relate to all the shares held by the member.

2. Pursuant to the COVID-19 (Temporary Measures) (Alternative Arrangements for Meetings for Companies, Variable Capital Companies, 

Business Trusts, Unit Trusts and Debenture Holders) Order 2020, the Company will implement alternative arrangements relating to 

attendance at the AGM by electronic means. Members will not be able to attend the AGM in person. Members will be able to watch the 

proceedings of the AGM through a “live” webcast via their mobile phones, tablets or computers or listen to these proceedings through a 

“live” audio feed via telephone. In order to do so, members who wish to watch the “live” webcast or listen to the “live” audio feed must 

pre-register by 10.00 am on 30 August 2022, at https://globalmeeting.bigbangdesign.co/ch2022/. Following authentication of their status 

as members, authenticated members will receive email instructions on how to access the webcast and audio feed of the proceedings of 

the AGM by 4.00 pm on 31 August 2022. Members who do not receive an email by 4.00 pm on 31 August 2022, but have registered by 

10.00 am 30 August 2022, should contact the Company’s webcast vendor by email at webcast@bigbangdesign.co. 

3. The Chairman of the AGM, as proxy, need not be a member of the Company.

4. The instrument appointing the Chairman of the AGM as proxy must:

 (a) if sent personally or by post, be received at the registered offi ce of the Company at 24 Raffl es Place, #20-03 Clifford Centre, 

Singapore 048621; or 

 (b) if submitted by email, be received by the Company, by email at enquiry.camsing@naturesfarm.com,

 in either case no later than 10.00 am on 5 September 2022, and in default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid. A member 

who wishes to submit an instrument of proxy must fi rst download, complete and sign the proxy form, before submitting it by post to the 

address provided above, or before scanning and sending it by email to the email address provided above.

5. The instrument appointing the Chairman of the AGM as proxy must be signed by the appointor or his attorney duly authorised in writing. 

Where the instrument appointing the Chairman of the AGM as proxy is executed by a corporation, it must be either under its common seal 

or signed on its behalf by a duly authorised offi cer or attorney. 

6. Where an instrument appointing the Chairman of the AGM as proxy is signed on behalf of the appointor by an attorney, the power of 

attorney (or other authority) or a duly certifi ed copy thereof must (failing previous registration with the Company) be attached to the 

instrument of proxy, failing which the instrument may be treated as invalid.

7. The Company shall be entitled to reject the instrument appointing the Chairman of the AGM as proxy if it is incomplete, improperly 

completed, illegible or where the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specifi ed in 

the instrument appointing the Chairman of the AGM as proxy (such as in the case where the appointor submits more than one instrument 

of proxy).

8. In the case of shares entered in the Depository Register, the Company may reject an instrument of proxy if the member, being the 

appointor, is not shown to have shares entered against his/her/its name in the Depository Register as at 72 hours before the time 

appointed for holding the meeting, as certifi ed by The Central Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company.

9. Similarly, a member of the Company who holds his/her shares through a Relevant Intermediary* (including CPF and SRS investors) and 

who wish to exercise his/her votes by appointing the Chairman of the AGM as proxy should approach his/her Relevant Intermediary 

(including his/her CPF Agent Banks and SRS Operators) to submit his/her voting instructions at least seven (7) working days prior to the 

date of the AGM.

 *A Relevant Intermediary means:

 (a) a banking corporation licensed under the Banking Act 1970 or a wholly-owned subsidiary of such a banking corporation, whose 

business includes the provision of nominee services and who holds shares in that capacity;

 (b) a person holding a capital markets services licence to provide custodial services for securities under the Securities and Futures Act 

2001 and who holds shares in that capacity; or

 (c) the Central Provident Fund Board established by the Central Provident Fund Act 1953, in respect of shares purchased under the 

subsidiary legislation made under that Act providing for the making of investments from the contributions and interest standing to 

the credit of members of the Central Provident Fund, if the Board holds those shares in the capacity of an intermediary pursuant to 

or in accordance with that subsidiary legislation.

Important Reminders 

Due to the constantly evolving COVID-19 situation, the Company may be required to change its Annual General Meeting arrangements at short 

notice. Members are advised to regularly check the announcements released on SGXNet for updates on the Annual General Meeting. Further, 

in view of the current COVID-19 measures which may make it diffi cult for members to submit completed proxy forms by post, members are 

strongly encouraged to submit completed proxy forms electronically via email.



Camsing Healthcare Limited
24 Raffles Pl, #20-03 Clifford Centre, Singapore 048621




